
 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 1 of 3 

TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY 

The Sunset City  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SPECIAL NOTICE: BY NEW PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR, DUE TO SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS IN THE 

BATTLE AGAINST THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC, THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL WILL RESUME IN-PERSON 

PUBLIC MEETINGS, BUT WILL CONTINUE TO OFFER A REMOTE ACCESS FORMAT.  MEMBERS OF THE 

PUBLIC MAY COME TO TOWN HALL TO ATTEND THESE MEETINGS OR THEY MAY ATTEND BY GOING 

TO [OR CALLING TO]:  https://www.facebook.com/HuachucaCityAZ or 520-844-2096.   IN 

ADDITION, THE MAYOR HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON CALLS TO THE PUBLIC AT THESE MEETINGS.  

HOWEVER, MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY STILL CHOOSE TO SUBMIT WRITTEN COMMENTS TO THE 

TOWN CLERK TWENTY-FOUR HOURS IN ADVANCE OF THESE MEETINGS.  

 

ADVANCE NOTICE OF ALL MEETINGS CAN BE FOUND AT THE TOWN’S USUAL AGENDA POSTING 

LOCATIONS, INCLUDING THE TOWN’S WEBSITE https://huachucacityaz.gov/ 

 

AGENDA 

 

A. Call to Order – Mayor 

a. Pledge of Allegiance 

b. Roll Call and Ascertain Quorum 

c. Invocation         

 

Any prayer/invocation that may be offered before the start of regular Council business 

shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, for the benefit of the Council and the 

citizens present. The views or beliefs expressed by the prayer/invocation speaker have 

not been previously reviewed or approved by the Council, and the Council does not 

endorse the religious beliefs or views of this, or any other speaker. A list of volunteers is 

maintained by the Town Clerk’s Office and interested persons should contact the Town 

Clerk’s Office for further information. 

 

B. Call to the Public – Mayor  

A.R.S. 38-431.01 states the Public Body may make an open call to the public during a public 

meeting, subject to reasonable time, place and manner restrictions, to allow individuals to 

address the public body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the Public Body.  At the conclusion 

of an open call to the public, individual members of the Public Body may respond to criticism 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN COUNCIL  

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 

THURSDAY, APRIL 22, 2021, AT 7:00 PM 

VIA IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE AND REMOTE ACCESS 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

500 N. GONZALES BLVD.  

HUACHUCA CITY, AZ 85616 

 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ
https://www.facebook.com/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 2 of 3 

made by those who have addressed the Public Body, may ask staff to review a matter or may 

ask that a matter be put on a future agenda. However, members of the Public Body shall not 

discuss or take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public unless the matters 

are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 

C. Consent Agenda - Mayor 

 

All items listed in the Consent Agenda are considered routine matters and will be enacted by 

one motion of the Council. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Member 

of the Town Council requests that an item or items be removed for discussion. Council Members 

may ask questions without removal of the item from the Consent Agenda. Items removed from 

the Consent Agenda are considered in their normal sequence as listed on the agenda, unless 

called out of sequence.  

 

C.1  Consider approval of the minutes of the Regular Council meeting held on April 8, 2021. 

C.2  Consider approval of the Payment Approval Report. 

     

D. Unfinished Business before the Council – Mayor 

 

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen, who wishes, may speak one 

time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions from 

Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the 

Mayor at any time. 

 

E.   New Business Before Council - Mayor 

 

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen, who wishes, may speak one 

time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions from 

Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the 

Mayor at any time.  

 

E.1 Discussion and/or Action [Spencer Forsberg]: Mr. Forsberg will review the Town’s finances 

for the month of March. 

 

E.2 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: Second reading of ORDINANCE NO. 2021-03 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, ARIZONA, 

AMENDING TOWN CODE CHAPTER 2.20 “COUNCIL PROCEDURE” SECTION 2.20.010 “REGULAR 

MEETINGS” TO REMOVE THE HOUR OF COUNCIL MEETINGS FROM THE TOWN CODE AND TO ALLOW 

FLEXIBILITY WITH RESPECT TO MEETING LOCATION; the Council might discuss and take action to 

change future Council meeting times from 7:00 pm to 6:00 pm.   

 

E.3 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey]: Council approval of an amended 

technical assistance and grant management agreement with the Southeastern Arizona 

Governments Organization (SEAGO) to assist the Town in managing its Community 

Development Block Grant [CDBG] for park improvements. 

 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 3 of 3 

E.4 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: Appointment of a representative to the 

SEAGO executive board. 

 

 

 

F.  Department Director reports 

G. Items to be placed on future agendas 

H. Reports of Current Events by Council 

I.  Adjournment 

 

Posted at 5:00 PM on April 20, 2021, at the following locations: 
Town Hall Bulletin Board 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd.  

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

Town Hall Lobby Windows 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616  

Town Website 

https://huachucacityaz.gov  

Huachuca City U.S. Post 

Office 

690 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

Huachuca City Library 

Windows 

506 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

Huachuca City Police 

Department 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

 
Ms. Brandye Thorpe 

Town Clerk 

 
Note:  This meeting is open to the public.  All interested people are welcome to attend. A copy of agenda 

background material provided to the Councilmembers, with the exception of confidential material 

relating to possible executive sessions, is available for public inspection at the Town Clerk’s Office, 500 N. 

Gonzales Blvd., Huachuca City, AZ 85616, Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. or online at 

www.huachucacityaz.gov 

 

Individuals with disabilities who need a reasonable accommodation to attend or communicate at a town 

meeting, or who require this information in alternate format, may contact the Town at 456-1354 (TTY 456-

1353) to make their needs known.  Requests should be made as early as possible so there is sufficient time 

to respond. 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ
https://huachucacityaz.gov/
http://www.huachucacityaz.gov/


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 1 of 

14 

TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY 

The Sunset City  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SPECIAL NOTICE: BY NEW PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR, DUE TO SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS IN THE 

BATTLE AGAINST THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC, THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL WILL RESUME IN-PERSON 

PUBLIC MEETINGS, BUT WILL CONTINUE TO OFFER A REMOTE ACCESS FORMAT.  MEMBERS OF THE 

PUBLIC MAY COME TO TOWN HALL TO ATTEND THESE MEETINGS OR THEY MAY ATTEND BY GOING 

TO [OR CALLING TO]:  https://www.facebook.com/HuachucaCityAZ or 520-844-2096.   IN 

ADDITION, THE MAYOR HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON CALLS TO THE PUBLIC AT THESE MEETINGS.  

HOWEVER, MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY STILL CHOOSE TO SUBMIT WRITTEN COMMENTS TO THE 

TOWN CLERK TWENTY-FOUR HOURS IN ADVANCE OF THESE MEETINGS.  

 

ADVANCE NOTICE OF ALL MEETINGS CAN BE FOUND AT THE TOWN’S USUAL AGENDA POSTING 

LOCATIONS, INCLUDING THE TOWN’S WEBSITE https://huachucacityaz.gov/ 

 

AGENDA 

 

A. Call to Order – Mayor 7:00pm 

a. Pledge of Allegiance 

Led by Mayor Wallace. 

 

b. Roll Call and Ascertain Quorum 

Roll Call. 

Present: Johann Wallace, Cynthia Butterworth, Christy Hirshberg, Debbie Trate, Jean Post, 

Suzanne Harvey (Not voting), Brandye Thorpe (Not voting), Thomas Benavidez, Attorney (Not 

voting). 

Absent: Keith Settlemeyer. 

 

c. Invocation 

Led by Elder Thomas.         

 

Any prayer/invocation that may be offered before the start of regular Council business 

shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, for the benefit of the Council and the 

citizens present. The views or beliefs expressed by the prayer/invocation speaker have 

MEETING MINUTES OF THE  

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN COUNCIL  

April 8, 2021 AT 7:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

500 N. GONZALES BLVD.  

HUACHUCA CITY, AZ 85616 

 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ
https://www.facebook.com/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 2 of 

14 

not been previously reviewed or approved by the Council, and the Council does not 

endorse the religious beliefs or views of this, or any other speaker. A list of volunteers is 

maintained by the Town Clerk’s Office and interested persons should contact the Town 

Clerk’s Office for further information. 

 

B. Call to the Public – Mayor  

 

A.R.S. 38-431.01 states the Public Body may make an open call to the public during a public 

meeting, subject to reasonable time, place and manner restrictions, to allow individuals to 

address the public body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the Public Body.  At the 

conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Public Body may respond 

to criticism made by those who have addressed the Public Body, may ask staff to review a 

matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda. However, members of the Public 

Body shall not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public 

unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 

C. Consent Agenda - Mayor 

 

All items listed in the Consent Agenda are considered routine matters and will be enacted by 

one motion of the Council. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 

Member of the Town Council requests that an item or items be removed for discussion. Council 

Members may ask questions without removal of the item from the Consent Agenda. Items 

removed from the Consent Agenda are considered in their normal sequence as listed on the 

agenda, unless called out of sequence.  

 

C.1  Consider approval of the minutes, including the executive sessions minutes, of the 

Regular Council meeting held on March 25, 2021. 

C.2  Consider approval of the Payment Approval Report. 

 

Motion: Items on the Consent Agenda, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, Moved by 

Johann Wallace, Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Motion: Items on the Consent Agenda, Action: Approve, Moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

D. Unfinished Business before the Council – Mayor 

 

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen, who wishes, may speak 

one time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions 

from Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through 

the Mayor at any time. 

 

 

E. New Business Before Council - Mayor 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 3 of 

14 

 

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen, who wishes, may speak 

one time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions 

from Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through 

the Mayor at any time. 

 

E.1 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey]: Presentation of the results of the financial 

audit conducted by Hinton Burdick for fiscal year 2020. 

 

Motion: Item E.1, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, Moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Cynthia Butterworth. 

 

Steven Palmer of Hinton Burdick presents the findings of the audit: 

 

Independent Auditors Report (pg 1-3) 

 Unmodified or “clean opinion”  

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance (pg 81-82) 

 One significant deficiency noted. 

 One compliance item noted. 

State Legal Compliance Report (pg 83) 

• Unmodified or “clean opinion” 

We also submitted a letter to management communicating other items needing correction that 

are of less significance.  

 

Government Wide Financial Highlights 

Total net position (equity) was $9,937,754 at June 30, 2020. 

Over time, increases or decreases in net position are an indicator of whether the financial health 

of the Town is improving or deteriorating. 

Net position decreased by $144,212 during fiscal year 2020 (excluding adjustment made for 

Camp Naco assets). 

The net position of governmental activities increased by $198,281. 

The net position of business-type activities decreased by $54,069. 

Governmental capital assets decreased by $198,333 (net).The Town reported $34,724 of 

additions, disposals of $104,809, and $233,057 of depreciation expense. 

Business-type capital assets decreased by $217,768(net). The Town reported $45,228 of 

additions, disposals of $48,522, and $262,996 of depreciation expense. 

Total Governmental long-term debt was $505,677 at June 30, 2020.   

• $22,849 – Compensated Absences 

• $124,828 – Net Pension/OPEB Liability 

• $358,000 – Excise Tax Revenue Bonds 

Overall, governmental long-term debt increased by $134,221. 

Total Business-Type long-term debt was $3,579,756 at June 30, 2020. 

• $532,793 – Capital Leases 

• $16,134– Compensated Absences 

• $3,030,829 – Landfill Closure/Postclosure 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 4 of 

14 

The Town’s Business-Type long-term debt increased by $40,089. 

 

 
The amount due to the Landfill Fund decreased from $2,448,215 to $2,213,281. 

 

 
 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 5 of 

14 

 
Fiscal year 2020 Town and State sales tax revenues increased by a combined $109,185.  

Mayor Wallace: The one thing I want to add is to make it perfectly clear, when you are stating 

a 1.9 million dollar deficit, that’s not saying that the Town overspent by 1.9 million dollars during 

the fiscal year that this is covering.  

Steven Palmer: That is an accumulation over many, many years. 

Mayor Wallace: Yes. That is what we have been trying to get out of, and thanks to this council 

and staff, that is what has made that downturn. Again, to be clear, we did not overspend by 

1.9 million dollars.  

 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 6 of 

14 

Over time, revenues should approximate expenditures in the Highway Users Revenue Fund since 

revenues are required to be spent on roads. The increase in revenue in fiscal year 2020 was due 

to one-time HB2748 monies (infrastructure funds). 

 

 
Fiscal year 2020 reported revenues in excess of expenditures.  As a result, amounts due to other 

funds decreased by $161,027. 

Fiscal year 2018 revenues included $231k of grant revenues for the water tank project. 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 7 of 

14 

 

 
Sewer Fund revenues exceeded expenses by $43,757. 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 8 of 

14 

 

 
Sanitation Fund revenues exceeded expenses $1,990. 

129,531 
127,475 

137,157 139,227 

80,725 
88,304 

157,970 137,237 

 -

 100,000

 200,000

2017 2018 2019 2020

D
o

ll
a

rs

Year

TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY
SANITATION FUND

Total Revenues and Total Expenses

Revenues Expenditures

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 9 of 

14 

 

 
The landfill fund paid $700k in rents to the general fund. 

The fund reported $91k in closure/post-closure expense and $145k in depreciation expense.  

In fiscal year 2019 there was a gain on the sale of assets of $322,981. 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 10 of 

14 

 
 

Councilmember Settlemeyer arrives at 7:16pm. Mayor Wallace provides him with a quick recap. 

 

Motion: The results of the audit as presented by Hinton Burdick for fiscal year 2020, Action: 

Accept, Moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

E.2 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey]: Memorandum of Understanding with Family 

Healthcare Amigos which operates a community lending shed [“Lending Shed”] for distributing 

free durable medical equipment and incontinence supplies to seniors and low-income 

households in Huachuca City and surrounding communities.   

 

Motion: Item E.2, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, Moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Cynthia Butterworth. 

 

Manager Harvey explains that this is just to formalize the partnership to provide these services 

to our residents. This has been going on informally for some time now. 

Councilmember Trate points out a couple of changes that should be made to the document 

where typos exist.  

 

Motion: The Memorandum of Understanding with Family Healthcare Amigos with the changes 

as noted, Action: Approve, Moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

E.3 Discussion and/or Action [ Mayor Wallace]: Resolution 2021-06, A RESOLUTION OF THE 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, 

ADOPTING A FAIR HOUSING POLICY, MAKING KNOWN ITS COMMITMENT TO THE PRINCIPLE OF 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 11 of 

14 

FAIR HOUSING, AND DESCRIBING ACTIONS IT SHALL UNDERTAKE TO AFFIRMATIVELY FURTHER FAIR 

HOUSING. 

 

Motion: Item E.3, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, Moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Motion: Resolution 2021-06, Action: Approve, Moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Debbie 

Trate. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

E.4 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: Proclamation 2021-04 recognizing April as 

Sexual Assault Awareness and Prevention Month.  

 

Motion: Item E.4, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, Moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Mayor Wallace reads the Proclamation. 

 

E.5 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: First reading of ORDINANCE NO. 2021-03 AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, ARIZONA, 

AMENDING TOWN CODE CHAPTER 2.20 “COUNCIL PROCEDURE” SECTION 2.20.010 “REGULAR 

MEETINGS” TO REMOVE THE HOUR OF COUNCIL MEETINGS FROM THE TOWN CODE AND TO ALLOW 

FLEXIBILITY WITH RESPECT TO MEETING LOCATION; the Council might discuss and take action to 

change future Council meeting times from 7:00 pm to 6:00 pm.   

 

Motion: Item E.5, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, Moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Mayor Wallace explains that especially with the past year and how things have been, there 

needs to be some flexibility in the time and location of the meetings. He asks Attorney Benavidez 

if changing the time of the meetings can also be discussed. 

Attorney Benavidez advises that the time could be changed now, before the code is changed. 

Mayor Wallace wants to wait until the code has been changed to change the meeting time. 

Councilmember Trate asks why the meeting time is being changed. 

Mayor Wallace advises that it is being changed in the hopes of getting more people to come 

and also because of staff. There is staff that is here all day and on meeting nights that means 

they are here from 7am until 8-9pm. Six o’clock makes more sense. 

Councilmember Trate is just worried because of work. 

 

E.6 Discussion and/or Action [ Mayor Wallace]: Second reading of Ordinance 2021-01 AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE 

COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN CODE TITLE 18 “ZONING,” CHAPTER 18.35 “R-1 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS,” SECTION 18.35.035 “TRAILERS/ACCESSORY VEHICLES” TO ELIMINATE THE 

REQUIREMENT TO REGISTER PARKING OF TRAILERS/ACCESSORY VEHICLES ON RESIDENTIAL 

PROPERTY AND TO ELIMINATE THE ASSOCIATED FEE. 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 12 of 

14 

Motion: Item E.6, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, Moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Motion: Ordinance 2021-01, Action: Adopt, Moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Christy 

Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

E.7 Discussion and/or Action [ Mayor Wallace]: Second reading of Ordinance 2021-02 AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE 

COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN CODE TITLE 18 “ZONING,” RELATING TO THE 

REGULATION OF RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA, MEDICAL MARIJUANA AND INDUSTRIAL HEMP; 

SETTING FORTH DEFINITIONS; PROHIBITING MARIJUANA ON PUBLIC PROPERTY; PROHIBITING 

MARIJUANA TESTING FACILITIES; REGULATING MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENTS; ESTABLISHING 

REGULATIONS FOR PERSONAL USE OF MARIJUANA AT AN INDIVIDUAL’S PRIMARY RESIDENCE; 

AUTHORIZING RETAIL SALES FROM MARIJUANA, MARIJUANA PRODUCTS AND INDUSTRIAL HEMP; 

REQUIRING COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LICENSING REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR PERMIT 

REQUIREMENTS; ESTABLISHING PURPOSES; IMPOSING FEES; SETTING FORTH VIOLATIONS; AND 

PROVIDING FOR ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES. 

 

Motion: Item E.7, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, Moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Motion: Ordinance 2021-02, Action: Adopt, Moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Christy 

Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

F. Department Director Reports 

Manager Harvey: For this month, you will get these at the next meeting. Going forward they will 

be at the first meeting of the month. CDBG project is ongoing, we are going to take a little bit 

longer with it because we feel like we need to have a landscaping architect do the design 

work to make sure it comes out looking the way we want it to. We have gone back to SEAGO 

and will have to do a change order to be able to get that done prior to starting work. Also, 

there is some legislation information I will be sending you regarding state income tax and the 

effect it could have on us as far as the shared revenue. It would result in about a $69,000.00 

reduction for us. The League is asking Mayors and Councils to write to their Senators and the 

Governor to oppose this piece of legislation. Kudos to the Library because they worked 

together with the Health Department, Fry Fire and Whetstone Fire and got a lot of folks their 

vaccines on Friday. It took about three full days to pull it off because they were also helping 

people register for the two days prior to the event. 185 doses were given to our residents. 

Director Fulton: It was a hectic week last week, but I got to meet a lot of Library patrons. 

Cabling project is still ongoing, then the reopening process will begin. It is anticipated to be 

fully reopened by the 11th of May. 

Chief Thies: Trax system is up and running. New computers are up and running. We were 

tentatively awarded a $30,000.00 grant for new radios. Yesterday we went out as a team and 

did weapons training. 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 13 of 

14 

Dr. Jim Johnson: WIFA sewer pond project is ongoing. New commercial building going up at 

Mr. Shed. A Tucson firm bought most of the empty houses in lower and are fixing them and 

flipping them.  

Matthew Doty: We did get a random inspection from ADEQ today and I would say it went 

positively. 

G. Items to be placed on future agendas 

H. Reports of Current Events by Council  

Councilmember Trate: Yesterday, I made introductions with Suzanne and Stephanie to make 

people in our Town aware of grants that the Chamber has. There is a grant to help home 

based business get an online presence. There is also a kind of shark tank that they can win 

office space, marketing, accounting services and things like that.  

Councilmember Butterworth: We had the SVMPO meeting. Food distribution coming up on the 

16th. As part of PACT, I was scheduled to attend the next meeting in Bisbee at the Border Patrol 

station, however due to a scheduling conflict, Councilmember Post is going to attend the 

meeting in my place.  

Mayor Wallace: We had the SVMPO meeting. Mayor Mueller did step down as the Chair. I am 

still the Vice Chair. I nominated Rachael Gray, and she is the new Chair.  

I. Adjournment 

Motion: 7:49pm, Action: Adjourn, Moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

 

Approved by Mayor Johann R. Wallace on April 22, 2021. 

 

 

 

        ____________________________________ 

        Mr. Johann R. Wallace 

Mayor 

   

 

 

Attest: _________________________________________ 

 Ms. Brandye Thorpe, 

 Town Clerk 

 

 

 

Seal: 

 

 

 

 

Certification 

 

  

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 14 of 

14 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Minutes of the Meeting for 

the Huachuca City Town Council held on April 8, 2021. I further certify that the meeting was 

duly called and a quorum was present. 

 

 

 

        ____________________________________ 

        Ms. Brandye Thorpe, 

        Town Clerk 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ








































































Page 1 of 2 
Ordinance 2021-03 

Town of Huachuca City 
   The Sunset City 

500 N Gonzales Blvd • Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 

Phone: (520) 456-1354 • TDD: (520) 456-1353 • Fax: (520) 456-2230 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA 

CITY, ARIZONA, AMENDING TOWN CODE CHAPTER 2.20 “COUNCIL 

PROCEDURE” SECTION 2.20.010 “REGULAR MEETINGS” TO REMOVE THE HOUR 

OF COUNCIL MEETINGS FROM THE TOWN CODE AND TO ALLOW FLEXIBILITY 

WITH RESPECT TO MEETING LOCATION.   
  

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Huachuca City has adopted by Resolution 

No. 84-002 a code known as the Town Code of the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona [the “Code”], 

and has amended and republished the Code from time to time, as authorized by A.R.S. 9-240 (B) 

(28); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Code, Chapter 2.20 “COUNCIL PROCEDURE” Section 2.20.010 

“Regular meetings,” provides a specific hour and location for meetings of the Town Council; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that it would be in the best interests of the 

Town and its residents to amend the Code to remove the hour and allow flexibility with respect to 

the location of Council meetings; and 

 

WHEREAS, as required by the Code, section 2-5-4, this Ordinance was first read at a 

public meeting of the Town Council on April 8, 2021, and at a subsequent meeting on April 22, 

2021.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Huachuca City, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1. The Code, Chapter 2.20 “COUNCIL PROCEDURE” Section 2.20.010 

“Regular meetings,” is amended as follows with deletions shown in strikeout text and additions 

shown in ALL CAPS TEXT: 

 

Chapter 2.20  

COUNCIL PROCEDURE  

 

2.20.010    Regular meetings. 

 
 Generally, the mayor and common council will hold regular meetings on the 
second and fourth Thursdays of each month. All regular meetings will be held at 
7:00 p.m., in the council chambers at Town Hall, UNLESS SPECIAL 
CIRCUMSTANCES MAKE ANOTHER LOCATION MORE SUITABLE. The 



Page 2 of 2 
Ordinance 2021-03 

mayor and common council may cancel or reschedule regular meetings due to 
holidays and other special events. The town manager shall present a 
recommended meeting schedule to the mayor and council each fiscal year. 

 

 SECTION 2. All ordinances, parts of ordinances, resolutions, parts of resolutions, 

policies, and parts of policies in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, or any part hereof, 

are hereby repealed in their entirety.   

 

SECTION 3. If any section, subsection or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held 

to be invalid or unenforceable by the decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 

shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions hereof. 

    

SECTION 4.  The Town Clerk is hereby directed, pursuant to the Code section 2.25.080, 

to publish this Ordinance as required by A.R.S. 9-812 and 39-204. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, THIS 22nd DAY OF APRIL, 2021. 

 

       ________________________________ 

                                                                                Johann Wallace, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Brandye Thorpe, Town Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

___________________________________ 

Thomas Benavidez, Town Attorney 



    C O N T R A C T 
 
 TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT #126-21 
 FY21 CDBG REGIONAL ACCOUNT TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 
  FOR COMPLETION OF PARK IMPROVEMENTS 
 

THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into by and between the SouthEastern 
Arizona Governments Organization (SEAGO), 1403 W. Highway 92, Bisbee, Arizona 
85603, hereinafter called the CONTRACTOR, and the TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, 
hereinafter called the TOWN. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, the TOWN is expected to receive a Community Development Block 
Grant  Contract  from the State of Arizona, Department of Housing (ADOH) Regional 
Account for the Park Improvement Project (CDBG #126-21) and 
 

WHEREAS, the TOWN is in need of technical assistance in administering said grant; 
and 

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR is agreeable to providing such assistance; and  
 

WHEREAS, the TOWN is agreeable to purchasing said technical assistance;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, the parties do mutually agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I - SEAGO OFFICERS - LEGAL STATUS 
 
A. The officers of the CONTRACTOR's Corporate Board of Directors are: Chairman; 1st 

Vice-Chairman 2nd Vice-Chairman and Treasurer. 
 
B. The Chief Executive Officer of the CONTRACTOR is Randy Heiss, Executive Director. 
 
C. The CONTRACTOR's legal status is that of an Arizona not-for-profit corporation in 

current compliance with the requirements of the Arizona Corporation Commission and 
doing business as the SouthEastern Arizona Governments Organization. 

 
ARTICLE II - SCOPE OF WORK 
 
A. The CONTRACTOR agrees that it will implement, in all respects, the program outlined 

in the attached Scope of Work (Attachment A to this Contract). 
 
B. The CONTRACTOR agrees to make no changes in the Scope of Work herein described 

without first submitting a written request to the TOWN and obtaining the TOWN'S 
written approval of the requested change. 

 
C. The CONTRACTOR shall provide all of the necessary qualified personnel, materials 

and facilities to implement the assistance program described herein.  
 
 
 



ARTICLE III - PERSONNEL 
 
The CONTRACTOR represents that it has, or will acquire, all of the qualified personnel 
required to perform this Contract; however, the TOWN reserves the right to assign any 
individual to assist in implementing the program outlined in the Scope of Work. 
 
ARTICLE IV - LENGTH OF CONTRACT 
 
A. The term of this Contract shall be from the date of execution of this agreement by the 

TOWN, through administrative closeout of the FY21 project.  This does NOT include 
any post close-out reporting requirements specified in the ADOH contract as “special 
conditions”. 

 
ARTICLE V - CONSIDERATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT 
 
A. In consideration of the CONTRACTOR's satisfactory completion of all work and services 

required to be performed under the terms of this Contract, and in compliance with other 
Contract requirements herein stated, the TOWN shall pay the CONTRACTOR THE 
SUM OF THIRTY-EIGHT THOUSAND AND FOUR-HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($38,400.00). 

 
B. The TOWN shall pay said monies to the CONTRACTOR in the manner set forth below:  
 

1. THREE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($3,000) upon notice of award of the grant for 
TAAP (Technical Assistance in Application Preparation). 
 

2. FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5,000.00) upon completion of the Environmental 
Review Report. 

 
3. TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS, ($10,000.00) upon completion of procurement of a 

construction contractor.  
 
4. TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) thirty (30) days after the start of 

construction.   
 
5. TEN THOUSAND, FOUR-HUNDRED DOLLARS ($10,400.00) one hundred eighty 

(180) days after the start of construction or the remaining balance due if the 
project is completed. 

 
C. The funds specified in Paragraph A of this Article V shall constitute full and complete 

payment of monies to be received by the CONTRACTOR from the TOWN for the 
purposes designated herein. 

 
D. The TOWN shall have the right to recapture of funds upon written notice to the 

CONTRACTOR, if the CONTRACTOR fails to comply with the terms of the Contract or 
conditions imposed by HUD provided that the recapture of funds shall not apply to work 
successfully completed by the Contract under the terms of the Contract and while in 
compliance with the conditions imposed by HUD. 

 
ARTICLE VI - RETENTION OF RECORDS 
 



 

 3 

A. The CONTRACTOR shall provide such records as will fully disclose the amount and 
disposition of the total funds for all sources budgeted for the contract period, the 
purpose of undertaking for which such funds were used, the amount and nature of all 
contributions from other sources, and such other records as the Arizona Department of 
Housing shall prescribe.  Such records shall be preserved by the TOWN for a period of 
not less than FIVE (5) years following Contract closeout. 

 
B. The CONTRACTOR and the TOWN shall make available to each other all financial and 

administrative records with respect to matters covered by this agreement at any time 
during normal business hours and as often as necessary. 

 
ARTICLE VII - AUDIT 
 
A. The TOWN and its duly authorized representative shall have access, for the purpose of 

audit and examination, to any books, documents, papers and records of the 
CONTRACTOR which are pertinent to this Contract and which will facilitate an effective 
audit. 

 
B. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain a group of separate records for any and all monies 

paid to the CONTRACTOR by the TOWN under the terms of this Contract. 
 
C. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain a salary schedule of employees engaged in work 

under terms of this Contract. 
 
ARTICLE VIII - INTERESTS OF THE CONTRACTOR 
 
A. The CONTRACTOR covenants that it has no pecuniary interest, and shall not acquire 

any pecuniary interest direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree 
with the performance of services required to be performed under this Contract.  The 
CONTRACTOR further covenants that in the performance of this Contract, no person 
having any such interest shall be employed. 

 
B. Any program income generated by the CONTRACTOR and derived from the program 

shall be awarded to the TOWN for its use in accordance with the conditions identified in 
24CFR570.506. 

 
ARTICLE IX - OFFICIAL NOT TO BENEFIT 
 
No member of, or delegates to, the Congress of the United States of America, and no 
public official, shall be admitted to any share or part hereof, or to any pecuniary benefit to 
arise herefrom.  The provisions of ARS 38-511 are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
ARTICLE X - OTHER REQUIREMENTS 
 
A. The CONTRACTOR will comply with all applicable state and federal rules and 

regulations concerning third party contracts in connection with the carrying out of this 
Contract. 

 
B. The CONTRACTOR has a copy of the Arizona Department of Housing CDBG Program 



 

 4 

Grant Administration Handbook, Application Handbook, Labor Standards Handbook, 
Procurement and Contracting Handbook and Environmental Review Handbook, and the 
CONTRACTOR shall comply with these existing regulations and provisions as well as 
future revisions. 

 
C. The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with applicable statutes, regulations and 

Executive Orders as required by the Arizona Department of Housing as described in the 
attached compliance requirements (Attachment B to this Contract). 

 
D. The CONTRACTOR certifies that its indirect cost schedule is in accordance with the 

provisions of Federal Management Circular A-87.   
 
E. The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with certification requirements regarding lobbying 

as stated in Attachment C. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CONTRACTOR and the TOWN do hereby execute this 
Contract as of the date last signed: 
 
 
                                                                                                         
SUZANNE HARVEY     RANDY HEISS  
TOWN MANAGER        EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR  
TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY    SOUTHEASTERN ARIZONA 
        GOVERNMENTS ORGANIZATION 
 
DATE:                                        DATE:                                  
 
 
ATTEST:                                                                             
     BRANDYE THORPE, CLERK 
      
APPROVED AS TO FORM:                             
 
 
                                                                       
THOMAS BENAVIDEZ, TOWN ATTORNEY 



 

 5 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 Scope of Work 
 
The SouthEastern Arizona Governments Organization, hereinafter called the 
CONTRACTOR, agrees to implement the grant administration/management program for 
the TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY hereinafter called the TOWN, described as follows: 
 
The CONTRACTOR will provide that level of management needed by the TOWN for the 
implementation of its Community Development Block Grant (CDBG #126-21) as 
delineated within Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH) Contract.  Such management 
will include the following specific work items that will be consistent with all ADOH CDBG 
Program requirements, as stated in Article XI, Section B.  It is understood that the 
CONTRACTOR is not a construction “project manager”.   
 
A. The CONTRACTOR will advise the TOWN in completing all documents required to 
initiate the grant activity(ies). 
 

B.  The CONTRACTOR will undertake all tasks relating to the Environmental Review.   
The TOWN agrees to cooperate fully in this requirement. 
 
D.  The CONTRACTOR will prepare all documents for the procurement of professional 
services, material purchases and/or construction bids, as needed, according to CDBG 
program requirements and regulations, and assist the TOWN in the procurement of said 
materials or services. 
 
E.  The CONTRACTOR will provide compliance with all Labor Standards requirements 
for construction projects, if needed.  The TOWN agrees to cooperate fully in this 
requirement. 
 
F. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all project records and files on behalf of the 
TOWN.  The TOWN agrees to cooperate fully in this requirement.  
  
G.  The CONTRACTOR shall assume full responsibility for responding to all ADOH 
questions, concerns, findings and reports, if the TOWN cooperates and provides any 
and all documents requested.  The TOWN agrees to do so in a timely manner. 
 
H.  The CONTRACTOR shall assist the TOWN in complying with any ADOH contract 
“special conditions”, EXCEPT post-closeout reporting requirements and any Self-
Evaluation and Transition Plans for non-profit sub-recipients.  Should a “special 
condition” require the writing of a Self-Evaluation and Transition Plan for a non-profit 
sub-recipient, extra charges will be negotiated between the TOWN and the 
CONTRACTOR. 
 
I. The CONTRACTOR will attend all monitoring visits made by ADOH staff. 
 
J.  The CONTRACTOR shall assist in and identify all activities leading to and including 
project closeout.  The TOWN assumes full responsibility for meeting all ADOH 
requirements prior to project closeout. 



 

 6 

 ATTACHMENT B 
 
 
 Civil Rights Provision (3 pages) 
 

Civil Rights Laws and Requirements 
 
 

********** 
 
Civil Rights Act Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 provides that no person 
of 1964, Title VI shall be: 

• Excluded from participation 

• Denied program benefits 

• Subjected to discrimination on the basis of: 

• Race 

• Color 

• National origin 
      Under any program or activity receiving Federal financial 

assistance. 
 
********* 
 
Civil Rights Act Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended, prohibits 
of 1968, Title VIII discrimination in housing on the basis of: 

• Race 

• Color 

• Religion 

• Sex 

• National Origin 
      This law requires HUD to administer its programs in a manner that 

affirmatively promotes fair housing. 
 
********* 
 
Rehabilitation  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended,  
Act of 1973,  no otherwise qualified individual shall, solely by reason of his or  
Section 504  her handicap, be: 

• Excluded from participation (including employment) 

• Denied program benefits 

• Subjected to discrimination  
       Under any program or activity receiving Federal funds.   
       It also requires each local government receiving such federal  
       funds to: 

• Conduct a self-evaluation; 

• Prepare a transition plan, if appropriate; 

• Ensure that its communications are accessible; 

• Ensure that its employment practices are non discriminatory; 



 

 7 

       And if it has 15 or more full or part time employees, it must: 

• Designate a 504 Coordinator 

• Adopt a grievance procedure; and 

• Comply with public notice requirements. 
 
*********  
Age     Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, provides that no 
Discrimination  Discrimination person shall be excluded from participation,  
Act of 1975  denied program Act of 1975 benefits, or subjected to discrimination 

on the basis of age - under any program or activity receiving 
Federal funds. 

 
********* 
 
Americans with Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 prohibits discrimination  
Disabilities   against individuals with disabilities for all state and local  
Act of 1990  governments and requires them to undertake actions similar to 

those required by Section 504.  It also contains a public 
accommodations portion and requires private employers not to 
discriminate against individuals with disabilities in terms of 
employment, services and accommodations. 

 
********* 
 
Executive Order Executive Order 11063 provides that no person shall, on the  
11063: Equal  basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin, be  
Opportunity in discriminated against in housing (and related facilities) provided  
Housing -  with Federal assistance practices with respect to residential  
Lending  property when such practices are connected with loans insured 
      or guaranteed by the Federal Government. 
 
********** 
 
Executive Order Executive Order 11246, as amended, provides that no person 
11246:   shall be discriminated against, on the basis of race, color,  
Employment  religion, sex or national origin, in any phase of employment  
Opportunity  during the performance of Federal or Federally assisted  
      construction contracts in excess of $10,000. 
 
********** 
 
Fair Housing   Fair Housing Act Amendments of 1988, extends the benefits of 
Act    the Housing Act of 1968 to two previously unprotected groups, 
Amendment  namely, families with children (i.e., anyone under 18) and  
Title VIII  individuals with disabilities. 
 
********** 
 
Housing and Urban     Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of1968, 



 

 8 

Urban                as amended, provides that, to the greatest extent feasible, 
Development     opportunities for: 
Act of 1968,   

Section 3                                

• Training 

• Employment that arise through HUD-financed projects shall 
be given to lower-income residents of the project area. 
Section also provides that contracts awarded in connection 
with such projects be awarded to: 

• Businesses located in the project area, 
        - OR - 

• Businesses owned, in substantial part, by residents of the 
project area. (Note: The Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1980 defined Aproject area as the unit 
of local government or the metropolitan area or the non-
metropolitan City in which the project is located.) 

 
********** 
 
Housing and  Section 104 of the Housing and Community Development 
Community  Act of 1974, as amended, provides that the grantee will   
Development  affirmatively further fair housing. 
Act of 1974,   
Section 104 
 
********** 
 
Housing and  Section 111 of the Housing and Community Development 
Community  Act of 1974, as amended, provides that no person shall  
Development  be excluded from participation (including employment),  
Act of 1974,  denied program benefits, or Act subjected to  
Section 111  discrimination on the basis of: 

• Race 

• Color 

• National Origin 

• Sex 

• Age 

• Handicap 

• Religion 

• under any program or activity funded in whole or in part 
under Title I (CDBG) of the Act. 



 

 9 

 ATTACHMENT C 
 Certification Regarding Lobbying 
 
Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans and Cooperative Agreements. 
 
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that: 
 
(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 

undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with the 
awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any 
federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, 
loan or cooperative agreement. 

 
 (2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to 

any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a member of congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a member of Congress, in connection with this federal contract, grant, 
loan or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit 
Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its 
instructions. 

 
 (3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in 

the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, 
subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that 
all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a 
prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 
31, U.S. Code.  Any person who fails to file the required Certification shall be subject to 
a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such 
failure. 
 
Statement for Loan Guarantees and Loan Insurance. 
 
The undersigned states, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 
 
 (1) If any funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or 

attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with this commitment providing for the United States to 
insure or guarantee a loan, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard 
Form LLL, Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions. 

 
  



 

 10 

(2) Submission of this statement is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code.  Any person who fails to 
file the required statements shall be subject to a civil penalty of less than $10,000 
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

 
 
 
 
                                                                                                         
SUZANNE HARVEY     RANDY HEISS  
TOWN MANAGER        EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR  
TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY    SOUTHEASTERN ARIZONA 
        GOVERNMENTS ORGANIZATION 
 
DATE:                                        DATE:                                  
 
 
 



1 
 

Town Manager’s Report – April 2021 
 

Staffing Update:   

• We will conclude 2nd interviews for the Finance Clerk position this week and expect to 

hire next week. 

• We are currently advertising the Landfill Director position.  Matthew Doty, Landfill 

Operator, is the acting Landfill Director and is doing an excellent job. 

• Will be hiring lifeguards and summer splash personnel soon. 

Budget 

• Department heads are making good progress on their budgets.  Expect the first budget 

work session at the end of April (tentatively scheduled for April 29) and the second in 

the first week of May. 

Sewer Ponds:   

• We received approval of the $1,770,000 WIFA Loan for closure of the sewer pond.  

$531,000 of the loan is forgivable.    

• SJ Anderson Company will do the work.  We have engaged them through JOC at 

Gordian Group which is part of the Arizona State Purchasing Cooperative.  We are 

awaiting a formal contract. 

SEACOM JPA Meeting Notes:   

• Budget meetings have begun. It does not appear that our costs will rise this year.   

• Commander Hiser, SVPD, is the acting Director; they are actively searching for a 

replacement for Allen Smith, the previous Director who resigned in December. 

Whetstone Fire.: 

• Have been working with Whetstone Fire Board Chairman, Rick Evens, on the draft IGA.  

Will have the draft complete next week. 

• They have asked for representatives from the Town to participate in their WFD Fire 

Chief Assessment which is scheduled for May.  Chief Thies, Brandye and I will be 

participating.  They have narrowed it done to 4 candidates.   

• Communication with Whetstone has improved significantly in the last few months.  

Interim Assistant Fire Chief Sam Foster is attending our staff meetings and will begin 

submitting monthly reports to council next month.  

Water Rights Litigation:  Trial is set for April 27th. 

Landfill:  We had our annual ADEQ inspection; the inspectors had some concern with blowing 

trash on our north face, on the east fence line and on the east range.  Matthew has been working 

hard to get it cleaned up and has made tremendous progress.  He is working with Ft. Huachuca to 

gain access to clean up the east range.  I toured the Landfill to see the problem areas and 

Matthew briefed me on plans to address them. 

 



2 
 

Road Assessment:  Is still not complete.  Doc Johnson and I reviewed a first draft of the 

assessment and, along with Dennis from SVMPO, sent comments to the firm that did the 

assessment.  We awaiting those corrections.  There is some very valuable/useful information 

included in the assessment. 

Annual Insurance Review:  Am currently reviewing the Town’s coverage and making changes 

as appropriate.  Arizona Municipal Risk Pool has made some recommendations for changes.  

Costs are expected to rise by approximately 6% next year.  Workman’s comp will also rise due 

to some legislative changes related to coverage of Public Safety personnel.   

Sierra Vista Area Chamber of Commerce:   Met with SV Area Chamber of Commerce’s 

CEO, Melany Edwards-Barton.  She explained some of the benefits of joining the chamber.  The 

cost is $500 per year but there are substantial benefits to include $400 of free advertising in the 

SV Herald which would benefit the town.  I will gather more information and then bring it to 

council for a decision.   

 

 

 

 

  



Town of Huachuca City 
The Sunset City 

Office of the Town Clerk 
500 N Gonzales Blvd • Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 

Phone: (520) 456-1354 • TDD: (520) 456-1353 • Fax: (520) 456-2230 

E-Mail: bthorpe2@huachucacityaz.gov 

 

Month of March Report 

 Water bills with newsletter went out.  
 Landfill billing went out 
 Bus service began on March 8th. Ridership is steadily increasing. 
 Meeting with Keith from SEAGO regarding the CDBG grant for parks. Everything is progressing 

well. 
 Met with Mike Barker of Sierra Collections to discuss the accounts we currently have 

submitted to them and how to proceed. 
 Negotiated a settlement with Whetstone Construction for their landfill account that was 

approved by Council. 
 Reviewed our business license fees and made recommendation to Council regarding setting a 

fee/fine for operating without a license.  
 Helped streamline procedures for public records requests. 
 Working on getting new cell phones for staff/Council. 
 Ongoing communication with Lumen for internet services to Town Hall/Police Department. 

 
 
 
UPCOMING 
 

 Continuing work on records archiving 
 Will assist in training new finance clerk when hired 
 Audit of landfill accounts- will begin collection efforts on past due accounts 
 Review administrative fees and present findings/suggestions to Council 
 AMCA annual conference in Phoenix 

 

 

mailto:bthorpe2@huachucacityaz.gov


Landfill Directors Report for March 2021 

Financial: 
Total tonnage;  3,275.7 
Total collected or billed;   $132,474.07 
 
Largest customers in March 2021: 
Waste Management    tons 926.8   $32,438.00 
Waste Disposal             tons 994.76   $34,816.60 
JP Findley                       tons 266.74   $9,342.25 
San Pedro Sanitation   tons 258.19   $9,036.65   Total at $35.00 /ton $85,633.50 
 
Rutherford Div. Ind.     tons 264.32   $14,801.92  Paying $56.00 /ton 
CASH Commercial        tons 152.55     $8,550.88 
CASH Residential          tons 71.01    $4,539.92 
 
Top 6 customers generated $108,986.30  or 86.5% of tonnage and 82.3% cash month of March 2021 
(First 4 customers are paying bulk rate of $35.00/ton) 
 
Border wall tonnage for March 2021  40.59 X $51.00/ton = $2,070.09 
 
Year to date FY 21:  (July 1 through March 31, 2021) 
Total Tonnage  27,740.47 
Total collected or billed to date:  $1,126,823.88 or 78.3% of projected revenue,  
 
Equipment: 
D8R Dozer.  Transmission leak fixed,  running good 
D6T Dozer.   Running good    
816K Compactor.  Running good,  
613 Scraper.  Operational seems to be losing power, air seat acting up again … Monitoring daily 
RO1 Roll-off truck.  Leak in DS front tire 
112F Motor Grader, fully operational   
F-450 service truck Running good.  Leak in DS front tire 
 
Operations: 
Working face has moved to westerly end…. Working to the east. Vision Berm to block site from Public. 
Hired 2 PT / Temp employees for litter control 
Border wall project Cancelled 
3 working days this month used inclement weather site. 
Received 100 tons of gravel for rainy days road cover 
Engineering for resubmittal to ADEQ for Expansion Permit complete,  waiting on Mayors Signatures 
Nearly Complete building access rd. on NW edge into parcel 5 for dirt hauling.  Public works assisting 
Stockpile of dirt on top 100 tons (@ 2 days worth of cover)   
 
Additional comment:   NEED ACCURATE EXPENSE TO BUDGET REPORT Through March 2021 ASAP 
 
Submitted April 1, 2021 
By Jay Howe 
Huachuca City  Landfill Director. 



 

Town of Huachuca City 

The Sunset City 

500 North Gonzales Boulevard, Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 

Phone (520) 456-1354, TDD (520) 456-1353, E-mail jhalterman@huachucacityaz.gov 

Fax: (520) 456-0374 

 
March 9th, 2021 
 
To:    Town Manager, Town clerk 
From: Public works Supervisor. 
Subj:    Workload Report 
 
 

1. All Monthly and Quarterly Samples for Wastewater have been pulled and taken to Turner Lab at 
the Holding Facility.  For Monitor Well One on Groundwater and Point of Entry on Wastewater. 

2. All Monthly Samples for Drinking Water have been pulled and taken to Turner Labs. 
3. Repairs to 206 Second Street, 289 Patton Meter Sets have been completed. 
4. The WIFA has been approved for $1,770,000 dollars, staff is in the process of getting the final 

paperwork completed to Mayor and Council.  Along with 30% we do not have pay back. 
5. Public works fabricated security latches for the Sewer Lids at the Holding Facility. 
6. Work has started painting the Swimming Pool Facility and repairs to the shower assemblies for the 

upcoming swimming at the city pool. 
7. Public works have been working with the landfill staff to get projects completed needed for the 

landfill. 
8. Hunt Ranch has been refurbished and graded by the Public works staff to maintain corrosion 

control for the Wastewater Mains feeding the Holding Facility.  Save wear and tear on Public works 
trucks that are needed for daily maintenance at the same time. 

 
 
 

 
James A Halterman 

Public Works Supervisor  

 

CC File:    



Library Director’s Report March-April 2021 – SJF 

• Because of delay in finishing the cabling project, the limited 

use opening will now start on Tuesday April 27th. It will be 

library and computer use by appointment for 45 minutes at a 

time. This will last for 3 weeks. 

• The library expects to fully reopen on Tuesday May 18th with 

our regularly scheduled hours. The staff and I are really 

looking forward to this. 

• We expect to start welcoming back groups/activity nights to 

the Senior Center by the same date if not before. Already some 

small groups are using it for meetings. 

• As part reopening process and updating the library fee 

schedule, after consultation with Suzanne, and having looked 

at data from the surrounding libraries in Cochise County who 

have done the same, I have decided to do away with overdue 

fines on all children’s materials. We will also be lowering 

overdue fines on adult DVDs to 50 cents a day from $1 per day. 

The remainder of adult materials including books, music CDs 

and audiobooks will remain at 25 cents per day per item. We 

will start eliminating children’s overdue fines as soon as it is 

worked out with the library district’s IT Systems Librarian. It 

should happen fairly quickly as other libraries in the county 

have already done it. 

❖ We will also start offering copying of legal-size documents 

in b&w and color. 

❖ We will also start printing and copying of regular size in 

color. 

❖ Already in the 4 weeks that I have been here, we have 

seen three requests for these services, so obviously there is 

a need here in Huachuca City that is not being met and I 

would like for the library to offer these services, 



especially for those who cannot travel to copy shops in 

other cities.  

❖ Just as a FYI, looking over the budgets of previous years, 

what the library overdue fines deposits into the budget 

works out at 0.05979155% of the overall city general 

revenues. 

❖ If council wishes to read reports on why overdue fines are 

not a good idea for low income populations and why they 

are an access barrier, here is a very good report from San 

Francisco Libraries that explains in more detail; 

https://sfpl.org/uploads/files/pdfs/commission/Fine-Free-

Report011719.pdf 

 

• I am pleased to report that the Chiricahua Mobile Clinic has been in 

touch and is hoping by fall to be coming back to HC on a regular 

monthly basis. In the meantime, they have been invited, and accepted, 

to come to our National Night Out/Back to School/Meet Your Teacher 

event. 

• The above-mentioned event will be Friday July 30 from 6:00-7:30pm. 

The School, Library and Police Department are trying a new idea by 

combining the back-to-school events in order to save families multiple 

trips and have everything on the same day. The school event will be 

from 5-6:30pm. We anticipate a lot more children will be needing back 

to school supplies this year, not only due to increased foot traffic, but 

also as an after-effect of financial hardship due to COVID. 

• The Friends of the library will have held their first book sale last 

Saturday 4/17 and I will verbally report on how that event went.  

 

https://sfpl.org/uploads/files/pdfs/commission/Fine-Free-Report011719.pdf
https://sfpl.org/uploads/files/pdfs/commission/Fine-Free-Report011719.pdf


Town of Huachuca City 
The Sunset City 

500 N Gonzales Blvd • Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 

Phone: (520) 456-1354 • TDD: (520) 456-1353 • Fax: (520) 456-2230 
 

 
   Attn:  Town of Huachuca City Council, Staff and Citizens 

Report Number:  4/16/2021 

 

Hello Team Huachuca City,  

Updates on your Police Dept., Records Department and Animal Control Officers activities.  

 

Police Officers:   

Through the April 16, 2021.   

 Your police department had the following activities. 

 

➢ Warrant Arrests 

➢ Weapons Training 

➢ TraCS implementation 

➢ Two new SUV’s operating successfully in the field   

➢ Experimenting with new technology (Dashcam Video) 

➢ Several vehicles impounded 

➢ Numerous citations (Civil and Criminal) administered 

➢ Approximately twelve DUI Alcohol/Drugs investigated 

➢ Successful Town events executed, (Polar Express, Christmas and Easter Parades).  

 

 AZPost Audit complete for 2020.  HCPD is in compliance.  .     

Two trained officers for Background investigation. 

One Firearms Instructor 

One ARIDE (Advanced DUI Detection) with a second officers going in May of 2021. 

 

Animal Control: 

ACO will cross train in records department.  ACO continues to surplus Town equipment.     

 

Records Department: 
All activities go through the Records Department.                                                                      
 
Thank You!              

  Sincerely, 
 

James L. Thies HC-1 
Chief James L. Thies 
 












	04-22-21 Regular Council Meeting
	C.1 04-08-21 Regular Council Meeting minutes-draft
	C.2 March Financial Report
	E.2 Ordinance 2021-03 
	E.3 Huachuca City SEAGO amended contract
	F.1 Town Manager Report April 21
	F.2 Town Clerk March Report
	F.3 Landfill Directors Report for March 2021
	F.4 Public Works Work Report
	F.5 March April 2021 Library Director Report
	F.6 Manager Report to Council  April 2021-Police
	F.7 Whetstone Fire Department March Report

